2009

Korilee Lilly v. Aaron Lilly : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

This court has appellate jurisdiction under Utah Code Ann. § 78A-4-103(2)(h).

ISSUES ON APPEAL AND STANDARDS OF REVIEW

1. **Issue:** Does the term “residence” in the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act mean where a military service-member parent *legally* resides or where the soldier *physically* resides even if he is only there under compulsion because of military orders?

Standard of Review: Statutory interpretation is a question of law. Brinkerhoff v. Brinkerhoff, 945 P.2d 113, 115 (Utah App. 1997). A correction of error standard applies. Id. No deference is given to the trial court’s interpretation. Id.

Issue Preserved: R:53-54; 91; 126-128; 168-174; 188-191; 199-214.

2. **Issue:** Do Utah military service-members retain their Utah residence under the UIFSA even if the military deploys them to serve outside the state of Utah?

Standard of Review: Statutory interpretation is a question of law. Brinkerhoff, 945 P.2d at 115. A correction of error standard applies. Id. No deference is given to the trial court’s interpretation. Id.

Issue Preserved: R:53-54; 91; 126-128; 168-174; 188-191; 199-214.

3. **Issue:** Did the court below erroneously decline subject-matter jurisdiction to modify the parties’ registered child support order?

Standard of Review: Jurisdiction is a question of law. Case v. Case, 2004 UT App 423, ¶ 5, 103 P.3d 171. A correction of error standard applies. Id. No

deference is given to the trial court's determination. Id.

Issue Preserved: R:53-54; 91; 126-128; 168-174; 188-191; 199-214.

4. **Issue:** Did the court below exceed its discretion by ordering Husband to pay Wife's attorney's fees and costs?

Standard of Review: Normally abuse of discretion. Bolliger v. Bolliger, 2000 UT App 47, ¶ 26, 997 P.2d 903. However, a discretionary decision premised on a flawed legal conclusion constitutes a per se abuse of discretion, Lund v. Brown, 2000 UT 75, ¶ 9, 11 P.3d 277, and conclusions of law are reviewed under a correction of error standard without deference to the trial court's decision. *See Brinkerhoff*, 945 P.2d at 115.

Issue Preserved: R:262-266; 318-322; 430-437.

5. **Issue:** Does this court retain authority to judicially review whether the court below mistakenly declined jurisdiction in the first place notwithstanding California's *subsequent* issuance of a modified child support order?

Standard of Review: Inapplicable because the court below never ruled on this issue. Even if it had, preclusion presents a question of law this court reviews under a correction of error standard without any deference to the court below. Gillmor v. Family Link, LLC, 2010 UT App 2, ¶ 10, 647 Utah Adv. Rep. 3.

Issue Preserved: R:439-532.

DETERMINATIVE STATUTES

Resolution of the issues presented on appeal is governed by the following provisions of the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (the “UIFSA”). Both California and Utah have adopted substantially the same version of this uniform act.

“A tribunal of this state that has issued a child-support order consistent with the law of this state has and shall exercise continuing, exclusive jurisdiction to modify its child-support order if the order is the controlling order, and:

(a) at the time of the filing of a request for modification, this state is the residence of the obligor, the individual obligee, or the child for whose benefit the support order is issued. ...”.

California Family Code § 4909 and Utah Code Ann. § 78B-14-205(1)(“**Section 205**”)

“If all of the parties who are individuals reside in this state and the child does not reside in the issuing state, a tribunal of this state has jurisdiction to enforce and to modify the issuing state's child support order in a proceeding to register that order.”

Utah Code Ann. § 78B-14-613(1) and California Family Code § 4962 (“**Section 613**”).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND RELEVANT FACTS

This is a proceeding to modify a sister-state’s child support order in Utah pursuant to the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act. The court below dismissed this case after concluding it lacked subject-matter jurisdiction. That erroneous determination is the subject of this appeal.

When reviewing a dismissal for lack of jurisdiction where the trial court relied on documentary evidence without conducting an evidentiary hearing, this court accepts the plaintiff’s facts as true and resolves any disputes in plaintiff’s favor. *See Neways, Inc. v. McCausland*, 950 P.2d 420, 422 (Utah 1997).

Background on the Parties

Appellant Aaron Lilly (“**Husband**”) is a United States Marine from Utah. (R:53, 138-145). Husband was born, raised, and graduated high school in Utah. (R:466). Husband enlisted in the Marine Corps in Utah in 1994. Id. On September 1, 2001, Husband married Appellee Korille Lilly (“**Wife**”) in Utah. Id.

During Husband’s service in the military, the Marine Corps has deployed him to serve at duty stations throughout the world such as Russia, Germany, Slovenia, Japan, Thailand, the Philippines, and California. (R:294). Despite these numerous transfers, Husband has always held himself out as a resident of Utah by, among other things, paying Utah taxes on his military pay (R:153-156; 159-160), maintaining his Utah drivers license (R:136), the right to vote in Utah elections (R:127), listing his home as Kearns, Utah on military records (R:141), and declaring his intent to return to live in Utah once released from active-duty military service. (R:126-127, 468). It is impossible for Husband to serve within Utah because the Marine Corps does not have a base in Utah. (R:467-468).

Although Husband is, for the time being at least, stationed in California, it is a judicially noticeable fact that he is subject to the orders of his superior officers and can be transferred at any time at their whim. *See Teague v. Third District Court*, 289 P.2d 331, 333 (Utah 1955). Therefore, Husband’s presence in California is presumptively temporary because of his active-duty status.

While Husband was deployed to California under military orders, Wife tried to file for a divorce against him in Utah. (R:487). Wife claims she could not because she was not

living in Utah at the time. Id. Undaunted, in April of 2005, Wife filed for a divorce in California instead. Id. Although Husband was still a resident of Utah and only in California because of military orders, he did not oppose Wife's divorce suit going forward in California. (R:468). The parties' California Decree of Divorce contains no finding that Husband ever established a domicile in California during the course of his deployment there. (R:4-50). Rather, the decree simply notes Husband had a "place of residence" to exercise parent-time in both San Diego *and* in Salt Lake City. (R:8).

On June 12, 2005, Wife returned to live in Utah along with the parties' minor child. (R:179, 468). Wife and the parties' minor child have legally and physically resided in Utah ever since. Id.

The parties eventually reached a settlement in Wife's California divorce proceeding and the court issued a Decree of Dissolution of Marriage on December 6, 2006. (R:4-50). This Decree provided, among other things, that Husband would pay Wife \$1,000 per month in child support based on her earning no monthly income at the time. (R:12-13).

Following the divorce, Wife obtained gainful employment in Utah. (R:100-101, 258). Accordingly, Husband desired to modify child support to take into account Wife's higher income. (R:53-54). Husband also desired to transfer and modify the parties' child support order in Utah given the fact he still legally resided in Utah and Wife had re-established her residence in Utah. Id.

The Utah Proceeding

On November 13, 2007, Husband, acting *pro se*, registered the parties' California Divorce Decree in the Third District Court for Salt Lake County, Utah, to begin the process of modifying that order in Utah. (R:1-3). Pursuant to the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act and Uniform Child Custody Jurisdiction and Enforcement Act, Husband gave Wife twenty (20) days to oppose registration of their California Divorce Decree in Utah. *See* Utah Code Ann. § 78B-14-606. Wife never contested registration and the California Decree was subsequently registered as a Utah court order. (R:163).

On November 27, 2007, Husband, still acting *pro se*, filed a "Petition to Modify Custody Order" asking the Utah court to modify child support, albeit with an unconventional caption. (R:53-54). Husband then filed an amended "Parentage Petition" on December 27, 2007 renewing his request to modify child support. (R:59-77).

On December 3, 2007, the California court conducted a hearing on Wife's motion to increase Husband's child support obligation in California and denied her motion based on the fact Husband was moving the Utah court to modify child support. (R:105-106). The California court ruled that:

"If Utah refuses to exert jurisdiction over the issue [of modifying child support then] either party may file their motion to be heard before this [California] court. If no motion has been brought in Utah for modification of child support, either party may file a motion requesting modification of child support to be heard before this court." (R:106)(emphasis added).

Wife subsequently moved the Utah court to dismiss Husband's Parentage Petition. (R:86-88). At the hearing on Wife's motion on March 26, 2008, the Domestic Relations

Commissioner remarked that Utah might lack subject-matter jurisdiction to modify child support because of Husband's military deployment in California. (R:388, Hrg. Transcr. 9:22-11:16 (March 10, 2008)). Nevertheless, the court declined to dismiss the Petition to modify child support. Id. Instead, the court held a Parentage Petition was an improper mechanism to modify child support. Id. at 11:14-12:1. Accordingly, the court granted Husband leave of court to submit an amended Petition to modify child support. Id. at 12:4-11.

Husband then retained counsel in Utah and, on June 25, 2008, filed an amended petition to modify child support in Utah asserting Utah had subject-matter jurisdiction under Utah Code Ann. §§ 7B-14-205 and 613 because both parents and their child legally resided in Utah and neither party had a California residence. (R:126-134). Husband explained that his physical presence in California was merely temporary on account of his military deployment, that he had maintained his legal residence in Utah, and that he intended to return to Utah following his release from military service. (R:126-127).

Rather than waiting for Utah to decide whether it would assert jurisdiction, Wife ignored the California court's order deferring the question of jurisdiction to Utah and, on or about July 29, 2008, renewed her motion for California to increase Husband's child support obligation.

On August 18, 2008, Husband filed a motion asking the Utah court, among other things, to decide whether it would assert subject-matter jurisdiction. (R:168-174). At the September 17, 2008, hearing on Husband's motion, the Utah Commissioner denied

Husband's motion and held the UIFSA looks only at where a military service-member parent is physically stationed regardless of where his legal residence might be. (R:386, Hrg. Transcr. 24:9-27:5, 28:1-30:4 (September 26, 2008)). Accordingly, the Commissioner concluded Utah lacked subject-matter jurisdiction to modify child support as long as Husband remained stationed in California even though his Wife and daughter resided in Utah. Id. Husband filed a timely objection to the Commissioner's recommendation on September 26, 2008 and requested a hearing before the District Court Judge. (R:199-214).

On or about September 27, 2008, Wife moved the Utah court to compel Husband to pay all her attorney's fees and costs because she prevailed on the question of whether Utah should have accepted jurisdiction or not. (R:216-217). Husband opposed the motion. (R:262-266, 319-322).

On September 30, 2008, after Wife informed the California court that Utah had declined jurisdiction, California granted Wife's motion to increase Husband's child support and issued a modified support order. (R:484-500). The California court's stated basis for retaining jurisdiction was (1) because Husband made a "general appearance" litigating jurisdiction in California, (2) because Husband did not object to Wife registering the Utah child support order in California, and (3) because Husband was physically stationed in California. (R:485-488). However, the California court made no finding that Husband was ever domiciled in California. (R:484-499).

On October 22, 2008, the Utah Commissioner ordered Husband to pay all of Wife attorney's fees and costs because she prevailed on the jurisdictional dispute. (R:323-325).

Although the court found her fees were reasonable and Husband had the ability to pay, the court made no finding that Wife needed help paying her legal expenses. Id.

On October 28, 2008, the Utah District Court denied Husband's objection to the Commissioner's recommendation on the issue of jurisdiction, (R:315-316), and later denied his objection to the award of attorney's fees and costs. (R:360-361).

Following the resolution of several post-judgment matters and entry of a final appealable judgment, Husband timely appealed the Utah trial court's decision (1) that the residence of a Utah military-service member under the UIFSA is where the military stations that soldier, (2) that the UIFSA looks only to the physical and not legal residence of Utah service-members, (3) that Utah lacked subject-matter jurisdiction over this matter, and (4) ordering Husband to pay Wife's attorney's fees and costs. (R:559-584).

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (the "UIFSA") is a uniform act adopted by all fifty states for the purpose of ensuring interstate child support modification and enforcement laws are uniform across the country. The UIFSA is premised on the idea that only one state can have subject-matter jurisdiction to modify a child support order at any given time based on the "residence" of each parent. Because the purpose of the UIFSA is to narrowly restrict jurisdiction to a single state, the term "residence" must mean *legal* residence (of which there can only be one) as opposed to *physical* residence (of which there can be many). Construing "residence" as *legal* residence in the context of

the UIFSA is an acceptable plain-meaning interpretation because the UIFSA is a national law, and nationally “residence” in domestic relations statutes is construed as *legal* residence. Tellingly, every appellate court to consider what “residence” in the UIFSA means has uniformly treated it as *legal* residence. To disregard the compelling need to interpret the UIFSA in a consistent manner across state lines would promulgate further interstate jurisdictional conflicts and would promulgate absurd results by forcing courts to disregard common sense and consider military service-members deployed to, for example, Iraq as having an Iraqi residence under the UIFSA.

Second, it is undisputed that Husband was a bona-fide and actual resident of Utah at the time he enlisted in the Marine Corps in Utah. Because Husband has maintained his ties to Utah throughout his military service by, among other things, paying Utah taxes on his military pay, the right to vote in Utah elections, maintaining his Utah drivers license, and because he plans to return to Utah once released from military service, Husband’s legal residence presumptively remains in Utah.

Therefore, because Husband legally resides in Utah and because Wife and the parties’ child reside in Utah, Utah has subject-matter jurisdiction to modify the parties’ child support order under Section 613 of the UIFSA. Because the court below held otherwise based on Husband’s military deployment in California, its judgment must be reversed. Likewise, the trial court’s order commanding Husband to pay attorney’s fees and costs must also be reversed because it is premised on a flawed legal conclusion.

Wife cannot use claim preclusion to sustain the otherwise erroneous judgment of

the court below based on California's issuance of modified child support order *after* the court below mistakenly declined jurisdiction. California deferred the question of which state should exercise jurisdiction to this state in its initial ruling. Therefore, this court retains authority to judicially review whether it was error for the court below to decline jurisdiction and, finding such error, to reverse that decision while giving full faith and credit to California's judgment delegating the question of jurisdiction to Utah. The Restatement (Second) of Judgments authorizes this court to deny preclusive effect to a *subsequent* judgment made in reliance on an erroneous decision by the court below that would substantially infringe on the appellate authority of this tribunal and its power to ensure lower courts are correctly following the law.

For these reasons, the judgment of the court below must be reversed.

ARGUMENT

"From the Halls of Montezuma to the shores of Tripoli," military service-members are regularly moved across the globe as they fight to keep our nation safe from harm. As a result, Utah service-members and their families are often faced with great uncertainty when asked where their "residence" is.

The question posed by this appeal is whether, under the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (the "UIFSA"), a Utah military service-member retains his residence in Utah even though the military orders him to serve outside Utah's borders for years at a time. For the reasons discussed in this brief, the answer is that a Utah service-member retains

his residence in Utah throughout the duration of his military service absent clear and convincing proof the service-member intends to abandon his Utah residence and permanently live elsewhere. Inasmuch as the court below held otherwise and mistakenly concluded it lacked jurisdiction because of Husband's military deployment to California, its judgment must be reversed.

This brief is divided into five parts. Because subject-matter jurisdiction is always a threshold issue, Case v. Case, 2004 UT App 423, ¶ 6, 103 P.3d 171, Husband will first discuss (1) why the term "residence" and its variations in the UIFSA means *legal* residence, (2) that he still *legally* resides in Utah, and therefore (3) Utah has subject-matter jurisdiction under Utah Code Ann. § 78B-14-613. Next, Husband will show (4) the court below exceeded its discretion by ordering Husband to pay Wife's attorney's fees and costs, and (5) California's *subsequent* reliance on the erroneous judgment of the court below carries no preclusive effect. Based on these points and the authorities discussed herein, the judgment of the court below must be reversed.

I. "RESIDENCE" IN THE UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT MEANS *LEGAL* RESIDENCE.

The question of whether the court below erroneously declined subject-matter jurisdiction to modify Husband's child support order is governed by the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (the "UIFSA"). Case, 2004 UT App 423 at ¶ 7. The UIFSA is a uniform law Congress compelled all fifty states to adopt in order to ensure child support modification and enforcement laws are uniform across state lines. Id. at ¶¶ 7-8. This appeal presents a question of first impression: does the term "residence" in the

context of the UIFSA mean where a military-service member parent *physically* or *legally* resides?

The Utah Supreme Court explained that to resolve questions of statutory interpretation:

“[w]e look first to the plain language of the statutes to determine their meaning and to discern the intent of the legislature. We also examine the purpose of the statute and its relation to other statutes. Provisions within a statute are interpreted in harmony with other provisions in the same statute and with other statutes under the same and related chapters. We do so because a statute is passed as a whole and not in parts or sections and is animated by one general purpose and intent. Consequently, each party or section should be construed in connection with every other part or section so as to produce a harmonious whole. Moreover, we avoid an interpretation that would embrace a result so absurd that it could not have been intended by the legislature.” Berneau v. Martino, 2009 UT 87, ¶ 12, 646 Utah Adv. Rep. 30 (internal citations and quotations omitted).

When determining whether a statutory term or phrase is ambiguous, a court must not read those words in isolation from the rest of the statute. FDA v. Brown & Williamson, 529 U.S. 120, 132, 120 S.Ct. 1291, 146 L.Ed.2d 121 (2000). The plain meaning – or ambiguity – of certain words or phrases may only become apparent when read in context with the rest of the statute. Id. (*citing* Brown v. Gardner, 513 U.S. 115, 118, 115 S.Ct. 552 (1994)) (“Ambiguity is a creature not of definitional possibilities *but of statutory context.*”)(emphasis added).

Finally, this court must remain mindful that the UIFSA is no ordinary Utah law. Because the purpose of the UIFSA is to make interstate child support enforcement and modifications laws uniform across the country, Case, 2004 UT App 423 at ¶¶ 7-8, the Utah Legislature has instructed Utah courts that “[i]n applying and construing it

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