2009

Korilee Lilly v. Aaron Matthew Lilly : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

Appellee further argues that this Court should define the meaning of "reside(s)" in UIFSA to be consistent with the definition applied to "residency" or "resides" in other areas of domestic relations law. In so doing, reside would not be synonymous with "domicile" and Appellant's physical presence as an inhabitant, his dwelling in and his having a settled abode would constitute his residence as remaining in California and precluding the transfer of subject matter jurisdiction over child support to Utah.

Based upon the foregoing, Appellee argues that the order of dismissal should be affirmed and that the award of attorneys fees to Appellee should also be affirmed, under the provisions of UIFSA, Appellant having been the prevailing party, Appellant's litigation herein having been presumed to have been primarily requested for delay. Further, Appellant failed to object to the second judgment below awarding attorneys fees to Appellee, which precludes him from raising that issue for the first time on appeal.

ARGUMENT

POINT ONE

RESPONDENT'S AMENDED PETITION TO MODIFY REGISTERED FOREIGN SUPPORT ORDER IS BARRED BY THE DOCTRINE OF CLAIM PRECLUSION AND THE CALIFORNIA ORDER MUST BE GIVEN FULL FAITH AND CREDIT

On September 30, 2008, pursuant to Appellee's Motion, a hearing was conducted in the parties' California divorce action, Civil No. D489897, in the San Diego County, California Superior Court. Appellant appeared at such Hearing, and objected to the existence of jurisdiction with such Court to modify the existing child support order that it had entered in December, 2006. Notwithstanding Appellant's objection, the California Court found that Appellant was a resident of California and entered an Order increasing the child support order from \$1,000.00 to \$1,225.00, effective August 1, 2008. In so doing, the California Court

specifically determined that jurisdiction over the issue of child support remained in the State of California.

As a result of the entry of the September 30, 2008 California child support order modification, Appellant's claims herein are barred by the doctrine of claim preclusion. The Utah Supreme Court, in Snyder v. Murray City Corp, 73 P.2d 325 (Utah 2003) discussed the two arms of res judicata, i.e., claim preclusion and issue preclusion and set forth the elements of each. For claim preclusion, “ ‘First, both cases must involve the same parties or their privies. Second, the claim that is alleged to be barred must have been presented in the first suit or be one that could and should have been raised in the first action. Third, the first suit must have resulted in a final judgment on the merits.’ ” (Citing Miller v. USAA Casualty Insurance Company, 44 P.3d 663 (2002)).

It is clear that all three such elements are present herein. Both the California and Utah proceedings involve the exact same parties and the exact same claim. That is, in the Utah proceeding, Appellant seeks a modification of the child support, while in the California proceeding, Appellee sought and obtained a modification of the child support award. In each proceeding, the issue of jurisdiction was raised, Appellant asserting that jurisdiction was in Utah and Appellee asserting that jurisdiction was in California. The September 30, 2008

hearing, in which proceeding Appellant filed a Motion to Dismiss asserting the lack of jurisdiction in California, resulted in an Order determining that jurisdiction to modify the child support order was in fact in California, which resulted in the increase of Appellant's child support obligation to \$1,225.00 per month.

Since all three of the elements of claim preclusion are met, Appellant is precluded from pursuing his claim to have Utah reduce his child support obligation and the parties are bound by California Order modifying Appellant's child support obligation.

Appellant asserts that the doctrine of claim preclusion is not applicable herein, citing Section 28 of the Restatement (Second) of Judgments, which reads in pertinent part as follows: "Although an issue is actually litigated and determined by a valid and final judgment, and the determination is essential to the judgment, relitigation of the issue in a subsequent action between the parties is not precluded in the following circumstances: (1) The party against whom preclusion is sought could not, as a matter of law, have obtained review of the judgment in the initial action;" Appellant does not explain, however, why Appellant, as a matter of law, was unable to obtain a review of the California child support modification. All Appellant needed to do to obtain such a review was to initiate an appeal in California. He failed to do so and the time for doing so has long since passed.

Had Appellant successfully appealed the California modification, he could then seek modification in Utah, since his petition for modification herein was dismissed, without prejudice.

Appellant also asserts that there can be no claim preclusion as a result of the California order because he considers it to be a void judgment. Appellant's argument ignores the reality that the California order is a void judgment only if the California court so determines. It has not done so, Appellant having neither appealed the California trial court order, nor having attempted to collaterally attack it by filing a motion to vacate the order. Whether Appellant is in fact entitled to collaterally attack the California order and whether such an attack would be successful is a matter of California law and is for California courts to decide.

Utah is obligated to give full faith and credit to the California Order. Article IV, Section 1 of the United States Constitution provides, "Full Faith and Credit shall be given to each State to the public Acts, records and judicial Proceedings of every other State." In order to be entitled to full faith and credit, a judgment must be both valid and final.

In In the matter of the Estate of Herbert Lee Jones, 858 P.2d 983 (Utah 1993), the Court held that "a foreign judgment that is both valid and final cannot be collaterally attacked even if grounded in errors of law or fact" and that if "the

judgment meets these criteria, it is entitled to full faith and credit.” The Court then discussed the meaning of validity as:

To be “valid,” for purposes of full faith and credit, a judgment must have been entered by a court with competent jurisdiction and in compliance with the constitutional requirements of due process.

Appellant has made no claim of denial of due process in the California proceeding. If the issue of jurisdiction has been raised and adjudicated in the foreign proceeding, as is the case herein, the determination of the foreign court is conclusive on the issue in Utah proceedings. See H.U.F and G.F v. W.P.W., 203 P.3d 943 (Utah 2009), Paffel v. Paffel, 732 P.2d 96 (Utah 1986) and Fullenwider Company v. Patterson, 611 P.2d 387 (Utah 1980). Thus, the California Judgment of modification is valid, the jurisdictional question having been conclusively determined therein and no claim having been made by Appellant of a denial of due process

The second requirement set forth in Estate of Jones to trigger the application of full faith and credit is “finality” of the judgment, meaning that no appeal has been taken therefrom. Appellant has made no claim herein that the California Order is not final. Per Estate of Jones, the finality must be determined in accordance with the laws of the rendering state . The California Rules of Court provide, at Rule 8.104 (a) (3) that the latest that a notice of appeal can be filed is

within 180 days after entry of judgment. More than eighteen months have passed since the entry of the September 30, 2008 California Order and no appeal has been filed. Accordingly, such Order is final. Inasmuch as the California Order is valid and final, it must be given full faith and credit and cannot now be collaterally attacked herein.

POINT TWO

THE SERVICEMEMBERS CIVIL RELIEF ACT AFFORDS NO SPECIAL PROTECTIONS TO SERVICEMEMBERS PERTAINING TO THEIR PLACE OF RESIDENCE IN THE CONTEXT OF A CHILD SUPPORT DETERMINATION

Since it is undisputed that Appellee and the parties' minor daughter reside in Utah and have done so since prior to the entry of the California Judgment of Dissolution containing existing child support order, it is clear that under the provisions of the Uniform Interstate Family Support Act (UIFSA), that Utah only has jurisdiction to modify such order if Appellant also "resides" in Utah (78B-14-613(1), Utah Code Annotated) or if Appellant does not "reside" in California or if both parties have consented to the exercise of such jurisdiction by Utah (78B-14-611(1), Utah Code Annotated). Since there has not been consent of each party to Utah exercising jurisdiction herein, in order for Utah to have jurisdiction, Appellant must either be a resident of Utah or not be a resident of California. As is

hereinabove set forth, the California Order has determined Appellant to be a resident of California. If that Order is not given full faith and credit to preclude Appellant's claim herein, then this Court must determine the meaning of "reside(s)" for the purposes of UIFSA. Unfortunately, the term "reside(s)" is not defined within UIFSA.

Appellant asserts that by virtue of his service as a uniformed member of the United States Marine Corps, that he cannot for any purpose, including a determination for child support purposes, lose his ability to claim Utah, the state from which he enlisted in 1994 and where he has not lived since that time, as his state of residence. In order to determine what rights are actually afforded to a servicemember, however, it is necessary to consult the applicable statutory provisions, i.e., The Servicemembers Civil Relief Act, 50 U.S.C. App. 501-596., hereinafter "Relief Act."

The purposes of the Relief Act are articulated at Section 502 as:

- (1) to provide for, strengthen, and expedite the national defense through protection extended by this Act to servicemembers of the United States to enable such persons to devote their entire energy to the defense needs of the Nation; and
- (2) to provide for the temporary suspension of judicial and administrative proceedings and transactions that may adversely affect the civil rights of servicemembers during their military service.

In furtherance of those purposes, the Relief Act provides only two areas of protection to a servicemember with respect to the loss or acquisition of a residence or domicile in conjunction with his military service. First, at Section 571(a), pertaining to residence for tax purposes (a), which reads: “A servicemember shall neither lose nor acquire a residence or domicile for purposes of taxation with respect to the person, personal property, or income of the servicemember by reason of being absent or present in any tax jurisdiction of the United States solely in compliance with military orders.” The fact that federal law specifically enables Respondent to continue to file his state income taxes in Utah (while using the address of his California residence) does not and cannot afford him residence status in Utah for the purposes of UIFSA.

Secondly, at Section 595 of the Relief Act, which provides that:

For purposes of voting for any Federal office (as defined in section 301 of the Federal Election Campaign Act of 1971 (2 U.S.C.431) or a State or local office, a person who is absent from a State in compliance with military or naval orders shall not, solely by reason of that absence—

- (1) be deemed to have lost a residence or domicile in that State, without regard to whether or not the person intends to return to that State;
- (2) be deemed to have acquired a residence or domicile in any other State; or
- (3) be deemed to have become a resident in or a resident of any other State.

Thus, the only circumstances under which Congress has provided that a person's military service in and of itself does not affect his place of residence are with respect to his rights regarding where he files taxes and where he votes. It is telling that the Relief Act does not contain any language that indicates that there is any special treatment for servicemembers pertaining to their place of residence, as a result of their compliance with military orders, for any other purposes except voting and taxes. The non-existence of any special residency provisions obviously extends to the domestic relations arena, including child support issues. Having specifically afforded special accommodations to servicemembers in the context of taxes and voting must give rise to the inference that Congress only intended to afford such specific protections, and limit those protections, to the specific exceptions that it carved out. Congress clearly did not intend that there be a general, across the board, restriction that a servicemember's residence not be affected by his military service and allow him to designate his place of residence, regardless of the reality of his actual physical residence. To rule otherwise would allow a party, in order to seek a perceived advantage, to forum shop and in this instance, to utilize a fictitious residence in order to attempt to minimize the amount of support payable to his child.

POINT THREE

APPELLANT REMAINS A RESIDENT OF CALIFORNIA FOR THE PURPOSES OF THE UNIFORM INTERSTATE FAMILY SUPPORT ACT AND AS SUCH, UTAH LACKS JURISDICTION TO MODIFY THE EXISTING CALIFORNIA CHILD SUPPORT ORDER

Although Appellant goes to great lengths to cite authority for his assertion that he “resides” in Utah for purposes of child support modification under UIFSA, including citations to unpublished opinions from Minnesota and Texas, which have no precedential effect, he has failed to cite a single case that is on all fours with the facts of this proceeding, which are:

- a. A child support obligor (obligor) having originally enlisted in the military from the state in which he was born and raised;
- b. The obligor having never been stationed in the state from which he enlisted during the course of his military service (approximately 16 years);
- c. The obligor and the child support obligee (obligee) having maintained their marital residence in the state that issued the child support order (issuing state);
- d. The obligor and obligee having been residents of the issuing state for the purpose of invoking that state’s jurisdiction for their divorce;

- e. The obligee having failing to object to the exercise of jurisdiction of the parties' divorce by the issuing state;
- f. The relocation of the obligee and the parties' child from the issuing state;
- g. The obligee having continued to dwell, maintain an abode, have a bodily presence and live in the physical sense in the issuing state; and
- h. The obligee having brought a child support modification proceeding under UIFSA in the state to which the obligee and child relocated.

Of the foreign state authority cited by Appellant, only three of such citations pertain to modifications of child support orders and residency under UIFSA, in conjunction with a modification that involved an obligor who was serving in the military. All other foreign state citations are not helpful and should not be considered, inasmuch as they turn on the particular statutory language and developed case law of such states, all of which is distinct from Utah law.

The cases cited by Appellant which deal with the issue of residency in the context of a UIFSA modification and an obligor who is a military servicemember are: Lattimore v. Lattimore, 991 So. 2d 239 (Ala.Civ.App. 2008), Kean v. Marshall, 669 S.E. 463 (Ga. App.2008) and In re the Marriage of Amezquita, 124 Cal. Rptr. 2d (Cal. App. 3 Dist. 2002). All of these cases are distinguishable from

the instant action. Unlike the instant case, all three proceedings involve a modification sought by the obligee. In Lattimore, the support order for which modification was sought was entered by Alabama, the obligee and the children claimed residence in Tennessee and the obligor claimed residence in Texas, where he was then stationed in the military. The Court allowed the obligee to proceed with the modification against the obligor in the issuing state, notwithstanding his military assignment to Texas, in part because under existing Alabama law, “a person who is inducted into military service retains residence in the state from which he is inducted until a new residence is established or the initial residence is abandoned” (at page 244). Utah has not adopted a similar holding.

In Kean, the obligee sought to modify an Alabama support order in Georgia where the obligor was stationed. As with Alabama, settled Georgia law is that “[a] person’s domicile is not changed merely by his enlistment in the army, and his transfer or assignment by military order to another jurisdiction.” (At page 465) The Court further defined “reside” as used in the Georgia version of UIFSA to mean “domicile” and was also based upon Georgia’s unique definition of domicile as contained in its domestic relations code. Once again, Utah has not adopted a blanket position similar to Alabama that enlistment in the military and a transfer by

the military to another jurisdiction does not alter the servicemembers placed of domicile

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